
DALLAS CITY COUNCIL
Monday, November 18, 2013

Council Chambers

The Dallas City Council met in regular session on Monday, November 18, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. in 
the Council Chambers of City Hall with Mayor Brian Dalton presiding.

ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Council members present: Council President LaVonne Wilson, Councilor Jim Brown, Councilor 
Jim Fairchild, Councilor Kelly Gabliks, Councilor Beth Jones, Councilor Jackie Lawson, 
Councilor Kevin Marshall, and Councilor Murray Stewart, and Councilor Ken Woods, Jr.

Also present were: City Manager Ron Foggin, City Attorney Lane Shetterly, Fire Chief Bill 
Hahn, Engineering and Environmental Services Director Fred Braun, City Recorder Emily 
Gagner, and Recording Secretary Jeremy Teal.

Mayor Dalton led the Pledge of Allegiance.

COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Mayor Dalton asked the audience members to limit their speeches to five minutes.

Chelsea Pope, Executive Director, Dallas Area Chamber of Commerce, 119 SW Court St, Dallas, 
Oregon, read a statement regarding chamber events, a copy of which is attached to these minutes 
and incorporated herein.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

PROPOSED 2013 CDBG HOUSING REHIBILITATION GRANT

Mayor Dalton opened the public hearing on the proposed 2013 CDBG Housing Rehabilitation 
Grant at 7:06 p.m.

Diana Cvitanovich, Polk Community Development Corporation, 657 SW Main St, Dallas, 
Oregon, read a statement regarding the Home Rehabilitation Loans, a copy of which is attached to
these minutes and incorporated herein. 

Councilor Lawson asked if the $400,000 program would be put out as loans or grants to citizens. 
Ms. Cvitanovich stated that homeowners who were unable to access financing funds would be 
given grants.

Councilor Lawson asked if the people on the waiting list would be picked over the people that 
could receive financing funds. Ms. Cvitanovich noted the waiting list was for people that couldn’t
qualify for a loan but were eligible for a grant. She advised that there were revolving loan funds 
for people that could qualify for a loan and commented that awarding loans would help stretch the
funds. She reported that all the money must be awarded.

Councilor Lawson asked if all 23 people on the waiting list would take all the funds Ms. 
Cvitanovich replied no, there was plenty of room for new people on the list.

Councilor Brown asked if the grants were allocated based on the merits of the type of 
rehabilitation. Ms. Cvitanovich advised that the applicant had to be income eligible and the house 
had to be able to be fixed.

Councilor Brown asked if there was an inspection process. Ms. Cvitanovich stated there was an 
assessment done on the home and the Program Rehabilitation Specialist would talk with the 
homeowners and decide the best plan of action for the home.

Councilor Brown asked if the grant was given based on receipts for the rehabilitation or if the 
homeowner received an outright $7,000 grant. Ms. Cvitanovich stated that once the homeowners 
were eligible, the assessment was done and the homeowners would seek bids for the scope of 
work they needed completed. She noted that once the grant was secured the contractor would sign
paperwork with the homeowner to complete work.



City Council Meeting
November 18, 2013
Page 2

Councilor Brown asked if the income determination was based on tax returns. Ms. Cvitanovich 
stated that it was based on the tax returns and the adjusted gross income. She advised that the 
program was through HUD and there were a number of substantiations required.

Councilor Lawson asked if there was $7,000 cap on the grant. Ms. Cvitanovich stated the grants 
were based on the total household income. She noted that there was no cap, but there were 
reasonable standards and determinations. She advised that an average loan was $17,000.

Councilor Lawson asked about using the $400,000 before time ran out. Ms. Cvitanovich reported 
that the grant had to be written in 2013, as not to affect the Senior Center grant. She advised the 
grant agreement wouldn’t be signed until summer of 2014 and that was when the two year clock 
started.

Councilor Lawson asked how it wouldn’t affect the Senior Center grant. Ms. Cvitanovich stated 
that if the rehabilitation program applied in 2013 that it wouldn’t affect the Senior Center 
application in 2014.

Mayor Dalton closed the public hearing at 7:22 p.m.

It was moved by Councilor Stewart to authorize the City of Dallas to be the applicant for the 
2013 CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program Grant, to be administered by the Polk Community 
Development Corporation (Polk CDC). The motion was duly seconded and carried unanimously.

CONSENT AGENDA

It was moved by Councilor Woods to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion was
duly seconded and carried unanimously.

Item approved by the Consent Agenda: the November 4, 2013, City Council meeting minutes.

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA

There were none.

REPORTS OR COMMENTS FROM THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

GENERAL COMMENTS

Councilor Stewart reported the National League of Cities (NLC) Conference was a great first time
experience. He noted the panels were well put together and very dignified and informative.
He advised that he received a great deal of insight into philosophies that could be applied to 
Dallas. 

Council President Wilson reported that the high school play was a magnificent performance. She 
noted that the cast was made up of mainly high school kids, but the ages ranged from 6 to 90.

Councilor Marshall stated he was impressed with everything that was heard at the NLC 
conference and that Dallas was doing good things. He noted the downtown revitalization and the 
projects all over the city were on the right track with what other cities were doing.

REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER AND STAFF

OCTOBER FINANCIAL REPORT

Mr. Foggin reported the October financials were tracking nicely with no surprises and all the 
departments were staying within their budgets. He reported that the City was working on a three 
year plan for capital projects and would be mapping out what the finances would look like over 
the next three years. He noted it wasn’t an exercise for a balanced budget, but based on revenue 
projections could accomplish what the City set out to do.

Councilor Brown asked about the backsliding on the aging report. Mr. Foggin stated he couldn’t 
pin point anything, but holidays may have an effect.

OTHER



City Council Meeting
November 18, 2013
Page 3

Mr. Foggin invited everybody to the downtown ribbon cutting Saturday, November 23 at 10 a.m..
He noted that the project was well on the way to be completed.

Mr. Foggin reported that the City received a letter of acceptance from Fred Hertel and he would 
start on December 9 as the new Fire Chief. He commented that Mr. Hertel was excited to get 
started. He noted that Chief Hahn would be missed.

Mr. Foggin advised that he spoke with Bill Petrovic about his concern for crosswalk safety. He 
noted that staff had researched the crosswalk equipment and it was not quite as cost effective as 
Mr. Petrovic thought, noting the cost would be $25,000 not installed. He stated that the City was 
dedicated to crosswalk safety and drivers staying at the posted speed would help eliminate 
accidents.

Mr. Foggin shared that the Facebook weekly total reach was up 1,219%. He also reported the City
was looking at creating a smart phone app to help the public keep track of things in the city.

Councilor Brown stated the he was approached by two business owners on Main Street about 
signs and façade grants and asked who at the City was handling those. Mr. Foggin stated that 
Jason Locke or John Swanson. He noted that there had been an uptake in interest in the façade 

grants and signs.

RESOLUTIONS

Resolution No. 3283 – A resolution setting forth the City of Dallas’s commitment to put healthy 
options within reach of all residents.

Councilor Fairchild noted he served on League of Oregon Cities board and worked on HEAL 
Oregon campaign and felt the City could benefit from the program.

Beth Kaye, Oregon Public Health Institute, 305 SW 4th Ave, Portland, Oregon, 97204, stated she 
was part of the Healthy Eating Active Living (HEAL) program from Oregon Public Health 
Institute and the League of Oregon Cities through Kaiser Permanente. She reported that there was
an obesity epidemic in our country and this program helped create a healthy environment for 
citizens and residents. She advised that this program would provide training and technical 
assistance to help City officials adopt policies that would improve healthier lifestyle choices. She 
stated that annually $421 a person in the state was spent on medical care due to unhealthy 
lifestyles. She noted that the three factors that directly affect obesity were genetics, behavior, and 
environment. She commented that this program would help educate people, inform the public 
about best practice policies, and encourage healthy food access. She indicated this program would
align the City with the League of Oregon Cities Livability Policy and create a platform for 
healthy living. She noted that this program would help when applying for competitive grants for 
trails and parks. Ms. Kaye noted that Dallas would be the seventh City in Oregon to join the 
HEAL Program.

Councilor Jones asked how the City would measure the effectiveness of the program. Ms. Kaye 
stated the program used DMV records and tracked policies passed. She noted this program helped 
future councils that could hang new programs on it.

Councilor Brown asked when the program started. Ms. Kaye stated it was started seven or eight 
years ago in California and this was her second year in Oregon. She noted the first year was a lot 
of traveling and listening to what communities wanted for healthy living.

Mr. Foggin stated that a number of the items listed on the HEAL cities website Dallas was 
already doing, like farmers’ markets. He noted the City was writing a trail connectivity grant with
ODOT and this program would help with securing that grant and creating safe routes for kids to 
get to school.

Councilor Lawson asked if any of the program policies were restrictive. Ms. Kaye stated that they
weren’t.

A roll call vote was taken and Mayor Dalton declared Resolution No. 3283 to have PASSED BY 
A UNANIMOUS VOTE with Councilor Jim Brown, Councilor Jim Fairchild, Councilor Kelly 
Gabliks, Councilor Beth Jones, Councilor Jackie Lawson, Councilor Kevin Marshall, Councilor 



City Council Meeting
November 18, 2013
Page 4

Murray Stewart, Council President LaVonne Wilson, and Councilor Ken Woods, Jr. voting YES.

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE

SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE

Ordinance No. 1758 – An ordinance establishing water use regulations during drought or 
emergency. 

A roll call vote was taken and Mayor Dalton declared Resolution No. 3283 to have PASSED BY 
A UNANIMOUS VOTE with Councilor Jim Brown, Councilor Jim Fairchild, Councilor Kelly 
Gabliks, Councilor Beth Jones, Councilor Jackie Lawson, Councilor Kevin Marshall, Councilor 
Murray Stewart, Council President LaVonne Wilson, and Councilor Ken Woods, Jr. voting YES.

OTHER BUSINESS

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.

Read and approved this _______ day of _________________________ 2013.

_______________________________________
                                     Mayor

ATTEST:

_________________________________________
City Manager


	OLE_LINK1
	OLE_LINK2
	OLE_LINK3
	OLE_LINK4

